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Olivehurst Public Utility District 

Agenda Item Staff Report 

Meeting Date:  06/20/2024 

Item description/summary: 
OPUD was requested for Deputy B Meilbeck Park & Prairie Trail Park reimbursable which were 
developed per Parks Development Agreement via OPUD and River Oaks Plumas Development, LLC 
signed October 30th, 2020 and reviewed by Russ Powell from Economic & Planning Services (EPS). It 
was deemed the developer met all requirements within the agreement and are refundable via 
reimbursements for the amount of $1,462,908.10 
 
 

 
Fiscal Analysis: 

Will reduce $1,462,908.10 from the existing Neighborhood fund of which are collected from each lot that’s 
developed and collected for future parks. The requested amount is within existing amount remaining in the 
neighborhood parks funding account and is within the budgeted/alotted amount for this park. 

 
Employee Feedback 

n/a 
 
 
 
 

 
Sample Motion: 

Move to Board approval to reimburse River Oaks Plumas Development, LLC for development of 
Deputy B Meilbeck Park and Prairie Trail Park. 
 
Prepared by: Swarnjit Boyal, Public Work Engineer 
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ATTACHMENT A – PARK DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
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ATTACHMENT B – Deputy B Meilbeck Park & Prairie Trail Park 

Improvement Reimbursement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

M E M O R A N D U M  

To: Swarnjit Boyal 

From: Russ Powell 

Subject: River Oaks South Park Fee Reimbursement; 
EPS #232122 

Date: May 9, 2024 

The Olivehurst Public Utility District (District) engaged Economic & 
Planning Systems, Inc. (EPS) to review and verify materials 
submitted by JAS Capital Ventures for reimbursement of park 
development impact fees after completing park construction 
obligations for the District. River Oaks Plumas Development, LLC 
(Developer) entered into an agreement with the District on 
October 15, 2020, to develop two parks (Deputy B. Meilbeck 
Memorial Park and Prairie Trails Park). 

Both parks have been constructed and accepted by the District 
as complete projects. The Developer has submitted electronic files 
to the District and EPS showing invoices and verification of payment 
of the submitted invoices in support of a requested $1,462,908.10 
reimbursement from the District park development impact fee fund. 
The electronic files serve as an alternative to a hard copy 
of supporting materials in the form of a project binder. 

EPS reviewed and verified the invoices and payments submitted. 
The Developer’s legal counsel has verified that there have been 
no liens recorded against the Developer for unpaid invoices from 
contractors and subcontractors used on the project. EPS has not 
independently verified that there are not current liens against 
the Developer for uncompensated work performed on the park 
construction. 

EPS reviewed cost assumptions for park development and park 
features included in the Nexus Study, which supports and 
authorizes the park fee program. The Developer is allowed 
a reimbursement of actual park construction costs, or the parks 
costs established in the Nexus Study, escalated to current year 
dollars, whichever is less. 

The $1,462.908.10 is the lesser of the two amounts. To the extent 
park development impact fees funds are available, the Developer 
is eligible for reimbursement of requested funds. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

RIVER OAKS SOUTH PARK DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES 

Deputy B. Meilbeck Memorial Park (Neighborhood) & 
Prairie Trails (Mini-Park) 

 
RIVER OAKS PLUMAS DEVELOPMENT, LLC 

As of March 18, 2024 
 
 
 
 

Summary of Parks Project Expenditures 
 
 
Construction Costs:       Sum of Costs:   Item# 
 
 TriScapes Commercial Landscaping   $ 998,644.24  01 
 Outdoor Creations (Signage)         8,984.76  02 
 Park Planet (Shade Structures)      53,824.72  03 
 Ross Recreation Equipment (Play Structures)  149,178.93  04 
 Teichert (Power Pedestal)       33,092.40  05 
 V-Power Equipment (Irrigation Equipment)     55,999.99  06 
   Total Construction Costs:  $       1,299,725.04 
  
 
 
Soft Costs: 
 
 Edgewood (Construction Insurance)   $   12,880.74  07 
 Garzon Design (Architect)       59,954.93  08 
 Kevin Payne Consulting (Project Management)    10,743.75  09 
 OPUD            4,000.00  10 
 State Water Resource Board         1,096.00  11 
 Trihydro (SWPP Monitoring)       74,100.00  12 
 Yuba County (Power Pedestal Permit)          407.64  13 
   Total Soft Costs:   $ 163,183.06 
 
Total Parks Development Expenses:   $       1,462,908.10 
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